₹ دور ما وال





State Bar Court of California Hearing Department Los Angeles DISBARMENT

Counsel for the State Bar

Joshua D. Mendelsohn Senior Trial Counsel 845 S. Figueroa St. Los Angeles, CA 90017 (213) 765-1000

Bar # 228888

In Pro Per Respondent

Shane Andres Reed P O Box 452 Jacksonville, OR 97530 (541)899-1085

Bar # 158382

In the Matter of: SHANE ANDRES REED

Bar # 158382

A Member of the State Bar of California (Respondent)

Case Number(s): 18-N-15741 YDR 18-O-17000

For Court use only

PUBLIC MATTER

FILED

APR 19 2019

STATE BAR COURT CLERK'S OFFICE LOS ANGELES

Submitted to: Settlement Judge

STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DISPOSITION AND ORDER APPROVING; ORDER OF INVOLUNTARY INACTIVE ENROLLMENT

DISBARMENT

☑ PREVIOUS STIPULATION REJECTED

Note: All information required by this form and any additional information which cannot be provided in the space provided, must be set forth in an attachment to this stipulation under specific headings, e.g., "Facts," "Dismissals," "Conclusions of Law," "Supporting Authority," etc.

A. Parties' Acknowledgments:

- (1) Respondent is a member of the State Bar of California, admitted June 8, 1992.
- (2) The parties agree to be bound by the factual stipulations contained herein even if conclusions of law or disposition are rejected or changed by the Supreme Court.
- (3) All investigations or proceedings listed by case number in the caption of this stipulation are resolved by this stipulation and are deemed consolidated. Dismissed charge(s)/count(s) are listed under "Dismissals." The stipulation consists of **13** pages, not including the order.
- (4) A statement of acts or omissions acknowledged by Respondent as cause or causes for discipline is included under "Facts."
- (5) Conclusions of law, drawn from and specifically referring to the facts are also included under "Conclusions of Law."

(Effective July 1, 2018)

(Do	not wri	te abov	ve this line.)
(6)			ties must include supporting authority for the recommended level of discipline under the heading ting Authority."
(7)			e than 30 days prior to the filing of this stipulation, Respondent has been advised in writing of any investigation/proceeding not resolved by this stipulation, except for criminal investigations.
(8)			t of Disciplinary Costs—Respondent acknowledges the provisions of Bus. & Prof. Code §§6086.10 & It is recommended that (check one option only):
	\boxtimes	and judg 6086	ts be awarded to the State Bar in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 6086.10, are enforceable both as provided in Business and Professions Code section 6140.7 and as a money ment. Unless the time for payment of discipline costs is extended pursuant to subdivision (c) of section 5.10, costs assessed against a member who is actually suspended or disbarred must be paid as a dition of reinstatement or return to active status.
		Co	osts are waived in part as set forth in a separate attachment entitled "Partial Waiver of Costs."
		Co	osts are entirely waived.
(9)	The unc	e parti ler Bu	OF INACTIVE ENROLLMENT: ies are aware that if this stipulation is approved, the judge will issue an order of inactive enrollment usiness and Professions Code section 6007, subdivision (c)(4), and Rules of Procedure of the State 5.111(D)(1).
		ond	ting Circumstances [Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional uct, standards 1.2(h) & 1.5]. Facts supporting aggravating circumstances are
(1)	\boxtimes	Prio	r record of discipline:
	(a)	\boxtimes	State Bar Court case # of prior case: State Bar Case No. 17-C-02768, See Page 9 and Exhibit 1 (32 pages).
	(b)	\boxtimes	Date prior discipline effective: May 18, 2018
	(c)	\boxtimes	Rules of Professional Conduct/ State Bar Act violations: Criminal Conviction Referral per Busines and Professions Code section 6101
	(d)	\boxtimes	Degree of prior discipline: Three year stayed suspension, three year probation with conditions, including a two year actual suspension and until respondent complies with standard 1.2(c)(1).
	(e)	\boxtimes	If Respondent has two or more incidents of prior discipline, use space provided below:
			Oregon Supreme Court Case No. 06-111, See page 9 and Exhibit 2 (9 pages); Effective:September 19, 2007; Violation: Oregon Rules of Professional Conduct rules 8.4(a)(3) and 7.5(c)(1) (Equivalent California Violations:Business and Professions Code section 6106 and California Rules of Professional Conduct, former rule 1-400(D)(1)); Degree of Discipline: public reprimand.

(2) Intentional/Bad Faith/Dishonesty: Respondent's misconduct was dishonest, intentional, or surrounded by, or followed by bad faith.

(Do r	not wri	te above this line.)
(3)		Misrepresentation: Respondent's misconduct was surrounded by, or followed by misrepresentation.
(4)		Concealment: Respondent's misconduct was surrounded by, or followed by concealment.
(5)		Overreaching: Respondent's misconduct was surrounded by, or followed by overreaching.
(6)		Uncharged Violations: Respondent's conduct involves uncharged violations of the Business and Professions Code or the Rules of Professional Conduct.
(7)		Trust Violation: Trust funds or property were involved and Respondent refused or was unable to account to the client or person who was the object of the misconduct for improper conduct toward said funds or property.
(8)		Harm: Respondent's misconduct harmed significantly a client, the public, or the administration of justice.
(9)		Indifference: Respondent demonstrated indifference toward rectification of or atonement for the consequences of Respondent's misconduct.
(10)		Lack of Candor/Cooperation: Respondent displayed a lack of candor and cooperation to victims of Respondent's misconduct, or to the State Bar during disciplinary investigations or proceedings.
(11)	\boxtimes	Multiple Acts: Respondent's current misconduct evidences multiple acts of wrongdoing. See page 9.
(12)		Pattern: Respondent's current misconduct demonstrates a pattern of misconduct.
(13)		Restitution: Respondent failed to make restitution.
(14)		Vulnerable Victim: The victim(s) of Respondent's misconduct was/were highly vulnerable.
(15)		No aggravating circumstances are involved.
Addi	tiona	al aggravating circumstances:
		ating Circumstances [Standards 1.2(i) & 1.6]. Facts supporting mitigating mstances are required.
(1)		No Prior Discipline: Respondent has no prior record of discipline over many years of practice coupled with present misconduct which is not likely to recur.
(2)		No Harm: Respondent did not harm the client, the public, or the administration of justice.
(3)		Candor/Cooperation: Respondent displayed spontaneous candor and cooperation with the victims of Respondent's misconduct or to the State Bar during disciplinary investigations and proceedings.
(4)		Remorse: Respondent promptly took objective steps demonstrating spontaneous remorse and recognition of the wrongdoing, which steps were designed to timely atone for any consequences of Respondent's misconduct.
5)		Restitution: Respondent paid \$ on in restitution to without the threat or force of disciplinary, civil or criminal proceedings.

(Do r	ot writ	e above this line.)
(6)	П	Delay: These disciplinary proceedings were excessively delayed. The delay is not attributable to Respondent and the delay prejudiced Respondent.
(7)		Good Faith: Respondent acted with a good faith belief that was honestly held and objectively reasonable.
(8)		Emotional/Physical Difficulties: At the time of the stipulated act or acts of professional misconduct, Respondent suffered extreme emotional difficulties or physical or mental disabilities which expert testimony would establish was directly responsible for the misconduct. The difficulties or disabilities were not the product of any illegal conduct by Respondent, such as illegal drug or substance abuse, and the difficulties or disabilities no longer pose a risk that Respondent will commit misconduct.
(9)		Severe Financial Stress: At the time of the misconduct, Respondent suffered from severe financial stress which resulted from circumstances not reasonably foreseeable or which were beyond Respondent's control and which were directly responsible for the misconduct.
(10)		Family Problems: At the time of the misconduct, Respondent suffered extreme difficulties in Respondent's personal life which were other than emotional or physical in nature.
(11)		Good Character: Respondent's extraordinarily good character is attested to by a wide range of references in the legal and general communities who are aware of the full extent of Respondent's misconduct.
(12)		Rehabilitation: Considerable time has passed since the acts of professional misconduct occurred followed by subsequent rehabilitation.
(13)		No mitigating circumstances are involved.
Addi	tiona	Il mitigating circumstances: Good Character, See pages 9-10. Pretrial Stipulation, See page 10.
D. F	leco	mmended Discipline:
	Disl	parment
		pondent is disbarred from the practice of law in California and Respondent's name is stricken from the roll torneys.
E. A	ddit	ional Requirements:
(1)	Cou resp	fornia Rules of Court, Rule 9.20: Respondent must comply with the requirements of California Rules of rt, rule 9.20, and perform the acts specified in subdivisions (a) and (c) of that rule within 30 and 40 days, ectively, after the effective date of the Supreme Court order imposing discipline in this matter. Failure to do nay result in disbarment or suspension.
	in per "effer file a orde crim- revo	ourposes of compliance with rule 9.20(a), the operative date for identification of "clients being represented ending matters" and others to be notified is the filing date of the Supreme Court order, not any later ctive" date of the order. (Athearn v. State Bar (1982) 32 Cal.3d 38, 45.) Further, Respondent is required to rule 9.20(c) affidavit even if Respondent has no clients to notify on the date the Supreme Court filed its r in this proceeding. (Powers v. State Bar (1988) 44 Cal.3d 337, 341.) In addition to being punished as a e or contempt, an attorney's failure to comply with rule 9.20 is, inter alia, cause for disbarment, suspension, cation of any pending disciplinary probation, and denial of an application for reinstatement after disbarment. Rules of Court, rule 9.20(d).)

)	Restitution (Single Payee): Responsive per year from the Fund to such payee in accordance.	(or reimburse the Client So	ecurity Fund to the extent of any pa	
)	Restitution (Multiple Payees): Restreimburse the Client Security Fund to accordance with Business and Professional Profess	to the extent of any payment f	rom the Fund to such payee in	(or
	Payee	Principal Amount	Interest Accrues From	
	Other Requirements: It is further readditional requirements:	ecommended that Responden	t be ordered to comply with the foll	lowi
	additional requirements.			

ATTACHMENT TO

STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DISPOSITION

IN THE MATTER OF:

SHANE ANDRES REED

CASE NUMBERS:

18-N-15741 and 18-O-17000

FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW.

Respondent admits that the following facts are true and that he is culpable of violations of the specified statutes and/or Rules of Professional Conduct.

Case No. 18-N-15741

FACTS:

- 1. On November 27, 2017, respondent Shane Andres Reed entered into a Stipulation Regarding Facts, Conclusions of Law, and Disposition ("Stipulation") with the State Bar of California concerning State Bar Court Case Number 17-C-02768.
- 2. On December 12, 2017, the Hearing Department of the State Bar Court filed the Stipulation in State Bar Court Case Number 17-C-02768 recommending to the Supreme Court of California the discipline set forth in the Stipulation.
- 3. On April 18, 2018, in State Bar Court Case Number 17-C-02768 (Supreme Court Case Number S246928), the Supreme Court issued an order ("Disciplinary Order"), effective May 18, 2018, which imposed discipline as to respondent consisting of a three year stayed suspension, a three year probation with conditions, including a two year actual suspension, and until respondent complies with standard 1.2(c)(1).
- 4. The Disciplinary Order ordered respondent to comply with California Rules of Court, rule 9.20 ("rule 9.20") and perform the acts specified in subdivisions (a) and (c) of that rule within 30 and 40 calendar days, respectively, after the May 18, 2018, effective date of the order. Respondent received the Disciplinary Order.
- 5. Per the Disciplinary Order, respondent's rule 9.20 compliance declaration was due by June 27, 2018.
- 6. On May 9, 2018, a probation deputy posted a letter of that date from the Office of Probation to respondent's attorney profile on the State Bar's website. The letter notified respondent of the effective date of his suspension per the Disciplinary Order and of his rule 9.20 and probation requirements and deadlines per the Disciplinary Order.
- 7. On May 9, 2018, the probation deputy emailed respondent at his membership records email address stating that the reminder letter had been posted to, and should immediately be downloaded by respondent from, his attorney profile on the State Bar's website.

- 8. On August 16, 2018, a probation deputy mailed a letter to respondent at his membership records address, and emailed the same letter to respondent's membership records email address. The letter notified respondent that he had not complied with the Disciplinary Order's requirements, and in particular, the requirements to schedule a meeting with the probation deputy by June 17, 2018, file a rule 9.20 compliance declaration by June 27, 2018, and file quarterly probation reports, including on July 10, 2018. Respondent received the letter and email.
- 9. Respondent failed to file a rule 9.20 compliance declaration with the clerk of the State Bar Court by June 27, 2018.
- 10. On September 24, 2018, respondent filed a compliant rule 9.20 declaration with the clerk of the State Bar Court, 89 days after the June 27, 2018, due date.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW:

11. By filing his rule 9.20(c) declaration of compliance with rule 9.20 with the clerk of the State Bar Court 89 days after the June 27, 2018, deadline ordered by the Supreme Court in Case No. S246928, respondent willfully violated California Rules of Court, rule 9.20.

Case No. 18-O-17000

FACTS:

- 12. On November 27, 2017, respondent entered into a Stipulation Regarding Facts, Conclusions of Law, and Disposition ("Stipulation") with the State Bar of California concerning State Bar Court Case Number 17-C-02768.
- 13. On December 12, 2017, the Hearing Department of the State Bar Court filed the Stipulation in State Bar Court case number 17-C-02768 recommending to the Supreme Court of California the discipline set forth in the Stipulation.
- 14. On April 18, 2018, in State Bar Court Case Number 17-C-02768 (Supreme Court Case S246928), the Supreme Court issued an order ("Disciplinary Order"), effective May 18, 2018, which imposed discipline as to respondent consisting of a three year stayed suspension, a three year probation with conditions, including a two year actual suspension, and until respondent complies with standard 1.2(c)(1). Respondent received the Disciplinary Order.
- 15. The Disciplinary Order ordered respondent to comply with the terms of probation set forth in the Stipulation, including, *inter alia*, the following:
 - a. Contact the Office of Probation within 30 days of the effective date of the Disciplinary Order -i.e. by June 17, 2018 to schedule a meeting with his assigned probation deputy to discuss the terms of probation;
 - b. File written quarterly reports on each January 10, April 10, July 10, and October 10 of the probation period, with the Office of Probation, including on or before July 10, 2018, and October 10, 2018; and

- c. Comply with all conditions of probation imposed in respondent's criminal matter underlying State Bar Court Case Number 17-C-02768, and so declare under penalty of perjury in connection with any quarterly probation report to be filed with the Office of Probation, including July 10, 2018, and October 10, 2018, quarterly probation reports.
- 16. On May 9, 2018, a probation deputy posted a letter of that date from the Office of Probation to respondent's attorney profile on the State Bar's website. The letter notified respondent of the effective date of his suspension per the Disciplinary Order and of his rule 9.20 and probation requirements and deadlines per the Disciplinary Order.
- 17. On May 9, 2018, the probation deputy emailed respondent at his membership records email address stating that the reminder letter had been posted to, and should immediately be downloaded by respondent from, his attorney profile on the State Bar's website.
- 18. On August 16, 2018, a probation deputy mailed a letter to respondent at his membership records address and emailed the same letter to respondent's membership records email address. The letter notified respondent that he had not complied with the Disciplinary Order's requirements, and in particular, the requirements to schedule a meeting with the probation deputy by June 17, 2018, file a rule 9.20 compliance declaration by June 27, 2018, and file quarterly probation reports, including on July 10, 2018. Respondent received the letter and email.
- 19. Respondent failed to contact the Office of Probation on or before June 17, 2018, to schedule a meeting with his assigned probation deputy to discuss the terms of probation.
- 20. Respondent failed to file his July 10, 2018, quarterly probation report with the Office of Probation by July 10, 2018.
- 21. On August 21, 2018, respondent belatedly contacted the Office of Probation to schedule an appointment to discuss the terms of probation.
- 22. Respondent failed to file his required October 10, 2018, quarterly probation report with the Office of Probation by October 10, 2018.
- 23. Respondent belatedly filed his July 10, 2018, and October 10, 2018, quarterly reports with the Office of Probation on October 16, 2018.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW:

24. Respondent willfully violated Business and Professions Code section 6068(k) by: (a) filing his July 10, 2018, quarterly probation report with the Office of Probation on October 16, 2018, 98 days after the July 10, 2018, due date ordered by the Supreme Court in Case Number S246928; (b) filing his October 10, 2018, quarterly probation report with the Office of Probation on October 16, 2018, six days after the October 10, 2018, due date ordered by the Supreme Court in Case Number S246928; and (c) contacting the Office of Probation to schedule a meeting to discuss the terms of his probation on August 21, 2018, 65 days after the June 17, 2018, due date ordered by the Supreme Court in Case Number S246928.

AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES.

Prior Record of Discipline (Std. 1.5(a)): Respondent has two prior records of discipline.

State Bar Case Number 17-C-02768 is a conviction referral case. The Supreme Court imposed discipline consisting of a three year stayed suspension, a three year probation with conditions, including a two year actual suspension, and until respondent complies with standard 1.2(c)(1). Respondent was also ordered to comply with rule 9.20 and the terms of his probation. The discipline was effective May 18, 2018. Respondent stipulated that on May 13, 2015, he was convicted on one misdemeanor count involving moral turpitude for failure to pay income taxes due in the years 2007 through 2009, in violation of 26 United States Code section 7203. In particular, respondent failed to pay income taxes he admitted to owing, and used his client trust account to retain earned fees and shield them from IRS levy. Moreover, periodically, and without regard to when the fees were earned, respondent accessed earned fees by writing checks to himself from the client trust account, which were then cashed by respondent. Aggravating circumstances included respondent's prior discipline in Oregon (see below), and the fact that his conduct was intentional and caused public harm. In mitigation, respondent entered into a pretrial stipulation. The parties stipulate that Exhibit 1 is a certified record of prior discipline imposed in State Bar Case Number 17-C-02768.

In 2007, in Oregon Supreme Court Case Number 06-111, respondent was reprimanded for two violations of the Oregon Rules of Professional Conduct ("ORPC") that occurred in 2005 and 2006, as follows: (1) ORPC 8.4(a)(3) [misrepresentation]; Respondent made a misrepresentation to the opposing party by signing respondent's client's name to a release of claims without informing the opposing party that respondent had signed the release on behalf of the client as attorney in fact; and (2) ORPC 7.5(c)(1) [misleading firm name]; Respondent used a misleading firm name by advertising that he was in a firm with "associates" when respondent was the only attorney at the firm. Aggravating circumstances included multiple acts of misconduct and respondent's substantial experience in the law. Mitigating circumstances included respondent's lack of dishonest motives, cooperation with the Oregon Bar, acknowledgment of the misconduct, regret, and changing his practices to comply with the ORPC. While respondent was not disciplined in California for this conduct, it is still considered a prior record of discipline for purposes of aggravation because there is a record of the underlying facts surrounding the misconduct. (See In the Matter of Jeffers (Review Dept. 1994) 3 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 211, 224 [records from any jurisdiction identified in Business and Professions Code section 6049.1 are prior records of discipline and may be considered aggravating where there is a record of the factual underpinnings for the foreign discipline].) The equivalent California misconduct, under Business and Professions Code section 6049.1, would be violations of Business and Professions Code section 6106 [Moral Turpitude, Misrepresentation], and California Rules of Professional Conduct, former rule 1-400(D)(1) [False Advertising], respectively. The parties stipulate that Exhibit 2 is a certified record of prior discipline imposed in Oregon Supreme Court Case Number 06-111.

Multiple Acts of Wrongdoing (Std. 1.5(b)). Violating rule 9.20 and multiple conditions of disciplinary probation constitutes multiple acts of misconduct. (*In the Matter of Bach* (Review Dept. 1991) 1 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 631, 646-7 [three acts of misconduct constitute multiple acts of misconduct].)

MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES.

Good Character: Respondent produced six declarations from references which stated that they are aware of the full extent of the misconduct alleged. The references were from an attorney, an editor, an

engineer, a business owner, a business analyst and social services professional. All attested to respondent's good character. (*In the Matter of Duxbury* (Review Dept. 1999) 4 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 61, 67 [four character letters are worthy of moderate mitigation credit].)

Pretrial Stipulation: By entering into this stipulation, respondent has acknowledged misconduct and is entitled to mitigation for recognition of wrongdoing and saving the State Bar significant resources and time. (*Silva-Vidor v. State Bar* (1989) 49 Cal.3d 1071, 1079 [where mitigative credit was given for entering into a stipulation as to facts and culpability]; *In the Matter of Spaith* (Review Dept. 1996) 3 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 511, 521 [where the attorney's stipulation to facts and culpability was held to be a mitigating circumstance].)

AUTHORITIES SUPPORTING DISCIPLINE.

The Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional Misconduct "set forth a means for determining the appropriate disciplinary sanction in a particular case and to ensure consistency across cases dealing with similar misconduct and surrounding circumstances." (Rules Proc. of State Bar, tit. IV, Stds. for Atty. Sanctions for Prof. Misconduct, std. 1.1. All further references to standards are to this source.) The standards help fulfill the primary purposes of discipline, which include: protection of the public, the courts and the legal profession; maintenance of the highest professional standards; and preservation of public confidence in the legal profession. (See std. 1.1; *In re Morse* (1995) 11 Cal.4th 184, 205.)

Although not binding, the standards are entitled to "great weight" and should be followed "whenever possible" in determining level of discipline. (In re Silverton (2005) 36 Cal.4th 81, 92, quoting In re Brown (1995) 12 Cal.4th 205, 220 and In re Young (1989) 49 Cal.3d 257, 267, fn. 11.) Adherence to the standards in the great majority of cases serves the valuable purpose of eliminating disparity and assuring consistency, that is, the imposition of similar attorney discipline for instances of similar attorney misconduct. (In re Naney (1990) 51 Cal.3d 186, 190.) If a recommendation is at the high end or low end of a standard, an explanation must be given as to how the recommendation was reached. (Std. 1.1.) "Any disciplinary recommendation that deviates from the Standards must include clear reasons for the departure." (Std. 1.1; Blair v. State Bar (1989) 49 Cal.3d 762, 776, fn. 5.)

In determining whether to impose a sanction greater or less than that specified in a given standard, in addition to the factors set forth in the specific standard, consideration is to be given to the primary purposes of discipline; the balancing of all aggravating and mitigating circumstances; the type of misconduct at issue; whether the client, public, legal system or profession was harmed; and the member's willingness and ability to conform to ethical responsibilities in the future. (Stds. 1.7(b) and (c).) Standard 1.7(a) states that if a member commits two or more acts of misconduct and the Standards specify different sanctions for each act, the most severe sanction must be imposed.

Relevant here, standard 2.14 provides that actual suspension is the presumed sanction for failing to comply with a condition of discipline/probation. The degree of sanction depends on the nature of the condition violated and the member's unwillingness or inability to comply with Disciplinary Orders. Also relevant, under rule 9.20(d), a member's willful failure to comply with the provisions of rule 9.20 is cause for disbarment or suspension.

Further, standard 1.8(b) applies to cases such as this in which the respondent has two or more prior records of disciplines. It states:

If a member has two or more prior records of discipline, disbarment is appropriate in the following circumstances, unless the most compelling mitigation circumstances clearly predominate or the misconduct underlying the prior discipline occurred during the same time period as the current misconduct:

- 1. Actual suspension was ordered in any one of the prior disciplinary matters;
- 2. The prior disciplinary matters coupled with the current record demonstrate a pattern of misconduct;
- 3. The prior disciplinary matters coupled with the current record demonstrate the member's unwillingness or inability to conform to ethical responsibilities.

Note however, "...even where compelling mitigation is absent, the Supreme Court has not always ordered disbarment...Instead, the Supreme Court considers all relevant facts and circumstances of a case to determine the discipline to impose." (In the Matter of Sullivan (2010) 5 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 189.)

Accordingly, the most severe discipline applicable here is disbarment per standard 1.8(b) and rule 9.20, and respondent's conduct warrants disbarment.

Respondent violated rule 9.20 because he failed to file his declaration of compliance with the State Bar Court by July 27, 2018. Instead, respondent filed his compliance declaration on September 24, 2018, 89 days late. Respondent also willfully violated section 6068(k) by: (1) filing his July 10, 2018, quarterly probation report with the Office of Probation 98 days after the July 10, 2018, due date ordered by the Supreme Court in Case Number S246928; (2) filing his October 10, 2018, quarterly probation report with the Office of Probation 6 days after the October 10, 2018, due date ordered by the Supreme Court in Case Number S246928; and (3) contacting the Office of Probation to schedule a meeting to discuss the terms of his probation 65 days after the June 17, 2018, due date ordered by the Supreme Court in Case Number S246928. Further, in State Bar Case Number 17-C-02768, a lengthy period of actual suspension – two years and until respondent complies with standard 1.2(c)(1) – was imposed Respondent's prior disciplinary matters coupled with respondent's failures to strictly adhere to the terms of rule 9.20 and his probation obligations, demonstrate respondent's unwillingness or inability to conform to ethical responsibilities.

Additionally, the most compelling mitigating circumstances do not clearly predominate. Instead, in aggravation, respondent has engaged in multiple acts of misconduct, and has significant and multiple instances of prior discipline. Conversely, the mitigating circumstances are not compelling and do not outweigh the aggravating circumstances. Therefore, standard 1.8(b) is applicable and no exception is present. Accordingly, respondent's conduct warrants disbarment per rule 9.20 and standard 1.8(b).

Case law also supports disbarment. The sanction recognized and generally imposed by the Supreme Court in rule 9.20 willful violation cases is disbarment. (Bercovich v. State Bar (1990) 50 Cal.3d 116, 131.) When it has not been imposed, the attorney had complied with the notification requirement to all their clients, participated in the disciplinary process, and presented substantial mitigating evidence regarding the noncompliance and their present good character. Given the lack of compelling mitigating circumstances in this matter to explain the failure to timely comply with rule 9.20 and probation conditions, and the presence of significant aggravating circumstances in this matter, disbarment is warranted under rule 9.20. (In the Matter of Esau (Review Dept. 2007) 5 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 131, despite the belated filing of a rule 9.20 compliance declaration, the Review Department held a willful violation of a court order requiring attorney's compliance with rule 9.20 was sufficient grounds for

disbarment per former standard 1.7(b) (now std. 1.8(b)) and rule 9.20, where the attorney had two prior records of discipline, and the evidence in mitigation was not compelling].)

Likewise, in *In the Matter of Burke* (Review Dept. 2016) 5 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 448, the Review Department found that disbarment was appropriate under Standard 1.8(b) where the attorney's past and current misconduct demonstrated his unwillingness or inability to fulfill his ethical obligations, the mitigation was not compelling, nor did it predominate over the significant aggravation, and the attorney had two prior impositions of discipline. (See also *In the Matter of Sullivan, supra*, 5 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 189 [holding that a common thread in prior discipline or a repetitive pattern of misconduct is not necessary under Standard 1.7(b) (now Standard 1.8(b) to support disbarment where the attorney has two or more prior impositions of discipline and the most compelling mitigating circumstances do not clearly predominate]; *Morales v. State Bar* (1988) 44 Cal.3d 1037, 1048 [lack of remorse and no compelling mitigation considered in applying former std. 1.7(b)] (now std. 1.8(b).)

Here, respondent has two prior impositions of discipline - one involving a significant suspension - belatedly filed his rule 9.20 compliance declaration, violated multiple terms of his probation and the aggravating circumstances prevail. Accordingly, disbarment will best serve the goals of protecting the public, the courts, and the legal profession; maintaining high professional standards for attorneys; and preserving public confidence in the legal profession.

COSTS OF DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS.

Respondent acknowledges that the Office of Chief Trial Counsel has informed respondent that as of December 19, 2018, the discipline costs in this matter are \$6,601. Respondent further acknowledges that should this stipulation be rejected or should relief from the stipulation be granted, the costs in this matter may increase due to the cost of further proceedings.

(Do not write above this line.))	
In the Matter of: Shane Andres Reed		Case Number(s): 18-N-15741; 18-O-17000
	SIGNATURE OF	
By their signatures belorecitations and each of	ow, the parties and their counsel, as a the terms and conditions of this Stipu	applicable, signify their agreement with each of the ulation Re Facts, Conclusions of Law, and Disposition.
March , 2019		Shane Andres Reed
Date	Respondent's Signature	Print Name
Date April	Respondent's Counsel Signature	Print Name
March 10 2019		Joshua Mendelsohn
Date	Deputy Trial Counsel's Signature	Print Name

(Do not write above this line.)						
In the Matter of:	Case Number(s):					
SHANE ANDRES REED	18-N-15741; 18-O-17000					
DISBARMENT ORDER						
Finding the stipulation to be fair to the parties and that it adequately protects the public, IT IS ORDERED that the requested dismissal of counts/charges, if any, is GRANTED without prejudice, and:						
The ctinulated facts and disposition are APPROVED and the DISCIPLINE DECOMMENDED to the						

The stipulated facts and disposition are APPROVED and the DISCIPLINE RECOMMENDED to the Supreme Court.

The stipulated facts and disposition are APPROVED AS MODIFIED as set forth below, and the DISCIPLINE IS RECOMMENDED to the Supreme Court.

All Hearing dates are vacated.

- 1. On page 2 of the Stipulation, at paragraph B.(1)(a), line 2, "(32 pages)" is deleted, and in its place is inserted "(31 pages)".
- 2. On page 11 of the Stipulation, third full paragraph beginning "Respondent violated . . . ," line 2, "July 27, 2018" is deleted, and in its place is inserted "June 27, 2018".

The parties are bound by the stipulation as approved unless: 1) a motion to withdraw or modify the stipulation, filed within 15 days after service of this order, is granted; or 2) this court modifies or further modifies the approved stipulation. (See Rules Proc. of State Bar, rule 5.58(E) & (F).) The effective date of this disposition is the effective date of the Supreme Court order herein, normally 30 days after the filed date of the Supreme Court order. (See Cal. Rules of Court, rule 9.18(a).)

Respondent SHANE ANDRES REED is ordered transferred to involuntary inactive status pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 6007, subdivision (c)(4). Respondent's inactive enrollment will be effective three (3) calendar days after this order is served by mail and will terminate upon the effective date of the Supreme Court's order imposing discipline herein, or as provided for by rule 5.111(D)(2) of the Rules of Procedure of the State Bar of California, or as otherwise ordered by the Supreme Court pursuant to its plenary jurisdiction.

Date REBECCA MEYER ROSENBERG
Judge Pro Tem of the State Bar Court

1

*

.

(State Bar Court No. 17-C-02768)

S246928

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF CALIFORNIA SUPREME COURT

En Banc

APR 1 8 2018

In re SHANE ANDRES REED on Discipline

Jorge Navarrete Clerk

Deputy

The court orders that Shane Andres Reed, State Bar Number 158382, is suspended from the practice of law in California for three years, execution of that period of suspension is stayed, and he is placed on probation for three years subject to the following conditions:

- 1. Shane Andres Reed is suspended from the practice of law for a minimum of the first two years of probation, and he will remain suspended until he provides proof to the State Bar Court of his rehabilitation, fitness to practice and learning and ability in the general law. (Rules Proc. of State Bar, tit. IV, Stds. for Atty. Sanctions for Prof. Misconduct, std. 1.2(c)(1).)
- 2. Shane Andres Reed must also comply with the other conditions of probation recommended by the Hearing Department of the State Bar Court in its Order Approving Stipulation filed on December 12, 2017.
- 3. At the expiration of the period of probation, if Shane Andres Reed has complied with all conditions of probation, the period of stayed suspension will be satisfied and that suspension will be terminated.

Shane Andres Reed must also take and pass the Multistate Professional Responsibility Examination during the period of his suspension and provide satisfactory proof of such passage to the State Bar's Office of Probation in Los Angeles within the same period. Failure to do so may result in suspension. (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 9.10(b).)

Shane Andres Reed must also comply with California Rules of Court, rule 9.20, and perform the acts specified in subdivisions (a) and (c) of that rule within 30 and 40 calendar days, respectively, after the effective date of this order. Failure to do so may result in disbarment or suspension.

kwiktao 9 227 204 976

Costs are awarded to the State Bar in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 6086.10 and are enforceable both as provided in Business and Professions Code section 6140.7 and as a money judgment. One-third of the costs must be paid with his membership fees for each of the years 2019, 2020, and 2021. If Shane Andres Reed fails to pay any installment as described above, or as may be modified by the State Bar Court, the remaining balance is due and payable immediately.

(CANTIL-SAKAUYE
	Chief Justice

I. Jorge Navarrete, Clerk of the Supreme Court of the State of California, do hereby certify that the preceding is a true copy of an order of this Court as shown by the records of my office.

Witness my hand and the seal of the Court this

day of APR 1 8 2018 20

Deputy

State Bar Court of California **Hearing Department** PUBLIC MATTEI Los Angeles **ACTUAL SUSPENSION** Counsel For The State Bar Case Number(s): For Court use only 17-C-02768-DFM Stacia L. Johns **Deputy Trial Counsel** 845 South Figueroa Street Los Angeles, CA 90017 (213) 765-1004 DEC 12 2017 STATE BAR COURT CLERK'S OFFICE Bar # 292446 LOS ANGELES In Pro Per Respondent **Shane Andres Reed** Reed & Associates P.O. Box 452 Jacksonville, OR 97530 (541) 899-1085 Submitted to: Assigned Judge STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND Bar # 158382 DISPOSITION AND ORDER APPROVING In the Matter of: SHANE ANDRES REED **ACTUAL SUSPENSION** PREVIOUS STIPULATION REJECTED Bar # 158382 A Member of the State Bar of California (Respondent)

Note: All information required by this form and any additional information which cannot be provided in the space provided, must be set forth in an attachment to this stipulation under specific headings, e.g., "Facts," "Dismissals," "Conclusions of Law," "Supporting Authority," etc.

A. Parties' Acknowledgments:

- (1) Respondent is a member of the State Bar of California, admitted June 8, 1992.
- (2) The parties agree to be bound by the factual stipulations contained herein even if conclusions of law or disposition are rejected or changed by the Supreme Court.
- (3) All investigations or proceedings listed by case number in the caption of this stipulation are entirely resolved by this stipulation and are deemed consolidated. Dismissed charge(s)/count(s) are listed under "Dismissals." The stipulation consists of 15 pages, not including the order.
- (4) A statement of acts or omissions acknowledged by Respondent as cause or causes for discipline is included under "Facts."

kwikteg =

026 803 917

1

(Effective July 1, 2015)

(Do	not w	rite above this line.)				
(5)	C: La	onclusions of law, drawn from and specifically referring to the facts are also included under "Conclusions of aw".				
(6)	Tł "S	he parties must include supporting authority for the recommended level of discipline under the heading supporting Authority."				
(7)	No pe	No more than 30 days prior to the filing of this stipulation, Respondent has been advised in writing of any pending investigation/proceeding not resolved by this stipulation, except for criminal investigations.				
(8)	Ρε 61	ayment of Disciplinary Costs—Respondent acknowledges the provisions of Bus. & Prof. Code §§6086.10 & 40.7. (Check one option only):				
	×	relief is obtained per rule 5.130, Rules of Procedure. Costs are to be paid in equal amounts prior to February 1 for the following membership years: three billing cycles following the effective date of the Supreme Court order. (Hardship, special circumstances or other good cause per rule 5.132, Rules of Procedure.) If Respondent fails to pay any installment as described above, or as may be modified by the State Bar Court, the remaining balance is due and payable immediately.				
I	Visc	ravating Circumstances [Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional conduct, standards 1.2(h) & 1.5]. Facts supporting aggravating circumstances are lired.				
(1)	(a)	Prior record of discipline State Bar Court case # of prior case				
	(b)	☐ Date prior discipline effective				
	(c)	Rules of Professional Conduct/ State Bar Act violations:				
	(d)	☐ Degree of prior discipline				
	(e)	☐ If Respondent has two or more incidents of prior discipline, use space provided below.				
(2)	×	Intentional/Bad Falth/Dishonesty: Respondent's misconduct was dishonest, intentional, or surrounded by, or followed by bad faith. See page 11.				
(3)		Misrepresentation: Respondent's misconduct was surrounded by, or followed by, misrepresentation.				
(4)		Concealment: Respondent's misconduct was surrounded by, or followed by, concealment.				
(5)		Overreaching: Respondent's misconduct was surrounded by, or followed by, overreaching.				
(6)		Uncharged Violations: Respondent's conduct involves uncharged violations of the Business and Professions Code, or the Rules of Professional Conduct.				

, T	4	
(Do I	10t WII	tte above this line.)
(7)		Trust Violation: Trust funds or property were involved and Respondent refused or was unable to account to the client or person who was the object of the misconduct for improper conduct toward said funds or property.
(8)	Ø	Harm: Respondent's misconduct harmed significantly a client, the public, or the administration of justice. See page 11.
(9)		Indifference: Respondent demonstrated indifference toward rectification of or atonement for the consequences of his or her misconduct.
(10)		Candor/Lack of Cooperation: Respondent displayed a lack of candor and cooperation to victims of his/her misconduct, or to the State Bar during disciplinary investigations or proceedings.
(11)		Multiple Acts: Respondent's current misconduct evidences multiple acts of wrongdoing.
(12)		Pattern: Respondent's current misconduct demonstrates a pattern of misconduct.
(13)		Restitution: Respondent failed to make restitution.
(14)		Vulnerable Victim: The victim(s) of Respondent's misconduct was/were highly vulnerable.
(15)		No aggravating circumstances are involved.
Addi	ition	al aggravating circumstances:
	P	rior Record of Discipline in a Foreign Jurisdiciton: See pages 11-12 and Exhibit 1.
		ating Circumstances [see standards 1.2(i) & 1.6]. Facts supporting mitigating imstances are required.
(1)		No Prior Discipline: Respondent has no prior record of discipline over many years of practice coupled with present misconduct which is not likely to recur.
(2)		No Harm: Respondent did not harm the client, the public, or the administration of justice.
(3)		Candor/Cooperation: Respondent displayed spontaneous candor and cooperation with the victims of his/her misconduct or `to the State Bar during disciplinary investigations and proceedings.
(4)		Remorse: Respondent promptly took objective steps demonstrating spontaneous remorse and recognition of the wrongdoing, which steps were designed to timely atone for any consequences of his/her misconduct.
(5)		Restitution: Respondent paid \$ on in restitution to without the threat or force of disciplinary, civil or criminal proceedings.
(6)		Delay: These disciplinary proceedings were excessively delayed. The delay is not attributable to Respondent and the delay prejudiced him/her.
(7)		Good Faith: Respondent acted with a good faith belief that was honestly held and objectively reasonable.
(8)		Emotional/Physical Difficulties: At the time of the stipulated act or acts of professional misconduct Respondent suffered extreme emotional difficulties or physical or mental disabilities which expert testimony would establish was directly responsible for the misconduct. The difficulties or disabilities were not the

(Do r	(Do not write above this line.)						
		pro or	oduct of any illegal conduct by the member, such as illegal drug or substitution disabilities no longer pose a risk that Respondent will commit misconduction.	ance abuse, and the difficulties ct.			
(9)		wh	Severe Financial Stress: At the time of the misconduct, Respondent suffered from severe financial stress which resulted from circumstances not reasonably foreseeable or which were beyond his/her control and which were directly responsible for the misconduct.				
(10)		Fai pei	mily Problems: At the time of the misconduct, Respondent suffered extended which were other than emotional or physical in nature.	treme difficulties in his/her			
(11)		Go in t	od Character: Respondent's extraordinarily good character is attested he legal and general communities who are aware of the full extent of his	to by a wide range of references /her misconduct.			
(12)		Rei foli	habilitation: Considerable time has passed since the acts of profession owed by convincing proof of subsequent rehabilitation.	nal misconduct occurred			
(13)		No	mitigating circumstances are involved.	•			
Addi	tion	al mi	tigating circumstances:				
	P	retri	al Stipulation: See page 12.				
D. D	isc	iplin	e:				
(1)	\boxtimes	Sta	yed Suspension:				
	(a)	\boxtimes	Respondent must be suspended from the practice of law for a period of	of three years.			
		i.	and until Respondent shows proof satisfactory to the State Bar (fitness to practice and present learning and ability in the general 1.2(c)(1) Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional Misc	law pursuant to standard			
		ii.	and until Respondent pays restitution as set forth in the Financia this stipulation.	al Conditions form attached to			
		iii.	and until Respondent does the following:				
	(b)	\boxtimes	The above-referenced suspension is stayed.				
(2)	\boxtimes	Prol	pation:				
	Res date	pond of the	ent must be placed on probation for a period of three years, which will do supreme Court order in this matter. (See rule 9.18, California Rules of	commence upon the effective of Court)			
(3)	Ø	Actı	ral Suspension:				
	(a)	×	Respondent must be actually suspended from the practice of law in the of two years.	e State of California for a period			
		i.	and until Respondent shows proof satisfactory to the State Bar C fitness to practice and present learning and ability in the general 1.2(c)(1), Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional Misc	law pursuant to standard			
		ii.	and until Respondent pays restitution as set forth in the Financia this stipulation.	Conditions form attached to			

(Do	not wr	ite above this line.)
		iii. and until Respondent does the following: .
E	Add	itional Conditions of Probation:
(1)		If Respondent is actually suspended for two years or more, he/she must remain actually suspended until he/she proves to the State Bar Court his/her rehabilitation, fitness to practice, and present learning and ability in the general law, pursuant to standard 1.2(c)(1), Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional Misconduct.
(2)	\boxtimes	During the probation period, Respondent must comply with the provisions of the State Bar Act and Rules of Professional Conduct.
(3)	×	Within ten (10) days of any change, Respondent must report to the Membership Records Office of the State Bar and to the Office of Probation of the State Bar of California ("Office of Probation"), all changes of Information, including current office address and telephone number, or other address for State Bar purposes, as prescribed by section 6002.1 of the Business and Professions Code.
(4)	×	Within thirty (30) days from the effective date of discipline, Respondent must contact the Office of Probation and schedule a meeting with Respondent's assigned probation deputy to discuss these terms and conditions of probation. Upon the direction of the Office of Probation, Respondent must meet with the probation deputy either in-person or by telephone. During the period of probation, Respondent must promptly meet with the probation deputy as directed and upon request.
(5)		Respondent must submit written quarterly reports to the Office of Probation on each January 10, April 10, July 10, and October 10 of the period of probation. Under penalty of perjury, Respondent must state whether Respondent has complied with the State Bar Act, the Rules of Professional Conduct, and all conditions of probation during the preceding calendar quarter. Respondent must also state whether there are any proceedings pending against him or her in the State Bar Court and if so, the case number and current status of that proceeding. If the first report would cover less than 30 days, that report must be submitted on the next quarter date, and cover the extended period.
		In addition to all quarterly reports, a final report, containing the same information, is due no earlier than twenty (20) days before the last day of the period of probation and no later than the last day of probation.
(6)		Respondent must be assigned a probation monitor. Respondent must promptly review the terms and conditions of probation with the probation monitor to establish a manner and schedule of compliance. During the period of probation, Respondent must furnish to the monitor such reports as may be requested, in addition to the quarterly reports required to be submitted to the Office of Probation. Respondent must cooperate fully with the probation monitor.
(7)	Ø	Subject to assertion of applicable privileges, Respondent must answer fully, promptly and truthfully any inquiries of the Office of Probation and any probation monitor assigned under these conditions which are directed to Respondent personally or in writing relating to whether Respondent is complying or has complied with the probation conditions.
(8)	\boxtimes	Within one (1) year of the effective date of the discipline herein, Respondent must provide to the Office of Probation satisfactory proof of attendance at a session of the Ethics School, and passage of the test given at the end of that session.
		□ No Ethics School recommended. Reason: .
(9)		Respondent must comply with all conditions of probation imposed in the underlying criminal matter and must so declare under penalty of perjury in conjunction with any quarterly report to be filed with the Office of Probation.

(Do no	ot write	above	this line.)			
(10)	The following conditions are attached hereto and incorporated:					
			Substance Abuse Conditions		Law Office Management Conditions	
			Medical Conditions	\boxtimes	Financial Conditions	
F. O	ther	Con	ditions Negotiated by the Parties	i e		
(1)	\boxtimes	the i Com one furti	Multistate Professional Responsibility Exal ference of Bar Examiners, to the Office of year, whichever period is longer. Fallure	minatio Probat to pas	on: Respondent must provide proof of passage of on ("MPRE"), administered by the National ion during the period of actual suspension or within s the MPRE results in actual suspension withou), California Rules of Court, and rule 5.162(A) &	
			lo MPRE recommended. Reason:			
(2)	Ø	Calif	ornia Rules of Court, and perform the acts	specif	must comply with the requirements of rule 9.20, fied in subdivisions (a) and (c) of that rule within 30 date of the Supreme Court's Order in this matter.	
(3)		days perfo	or more, he/she must comply with the rec	uireme nd (c)	If Respondent remains actually suspended for 90 ents of rule 9.20, California Rules of Court, and of that rule within 120 and 130 calendar days, Court's Order in this matter.	
(4)		perio	lit for Interim Suspension [conviction red of his/her interim suspension toward the mencement of interim suspension:		cases only]: Respondent will be credited for the ated period of actual suspension. Date of	
(5)		Othe	r Conditions:			

(Do	not write above this line.)				
	the Matter of: hane Andres Reed		Case Nur 17-C-027		en ferminakken in minera ngang dinandhibin manand
Fil	nancial Conditions				
a.	Restitution				
	Respondent must pay restitute payee(s) listed below. If the Corrany portion of the principal amount(s) paid, plus applicable.	Client Security Fund (* amount(s) listed belov	CSF") has	reimbursed one or more of	the pavee(s) for all
	Payee	Principal Amount		Interest Accrues From	
					_
					_
					_
					4
					-
]
					1
	Respondent must pay above-r	eferenced restitution a	and provide	e satisfactory proof of payme	ent to the Office of
	Probation not later than	•			
	Installment Restitution Payment	\$			
	Respondent must pay the above must provide satisfactory proof as otherwise directed by the O probation (or period of reprovathe payment of restitution, included)	f of payment to the Off ffice of Probation. No I), Respondent must n	fice of Prob later than	pation with each quarterly pr 30 days prior to the expirati	obation report, or on of the period of
	Payee/CSF (as applicable)	Minimum Payment	Amount	Payment Frequency	
					-

, (D	not 1	write a	bow	e this lir	ne.)	,						,			
		-							***********						
											<u> </u>			_	
		If Ri	esp rem	onder ıaininç	nt fails to g balance	pay any e is due a	installm Ind paya	ent as de able imm	escribe ediate	d above, y.	or as m	ay be m	nodified b	y the	State Bar Court,
C.	Cli	ent F	un	ds Ce	rtificate										. •
			1.	repor	t, Respo	ndent m	ust file w	<i>r</i> ith each	requir	ed report	a certif	cate fro	m Respon	ndent	uired quarterly and/or a certifie certifying that:
				C	California		nch loca	ated with	in the	State of C					in the State of nt is designated
				b. F	Responde	ent has k	ept and	maintain	ed the	following) :				
				i. ii. iv.	1. th 2. th 3. th 4. th a writt 1. th 3. th all bar each differe	e name of the date, and ient; and ie current ten journale name of the current ten ten ten ten ten ten ten ten ten	of such of mount a mount, if balance al for each a mount a balance nents an econcilia ween the	client; and source payee ar e for suc ch client account; and clien e in such d cancel ation (ba e month	ce of a nd purp th clien trust fu t affect accoulled cha alancing	Il funds repose of eat. Ind account. ed by each int. ecks for e	eceived ach dist unt that ch debit each clie	on beha ourseme sets for and cre ent trust iii), abo	th:	a clien on be	t; half of such are any
					pecifies: each i the pe the da the da	tem of se erson on the erson of the contract of the contract of section of the contract of the	ecurity a whose b eipt of th	nd prope ehalf the e securi of the se	erty hel e secur ity or pi ecurity	d; ity or pro	perty is ty; and,	held;	propertie	s held	for clients that

If Respondent does not possess any client funds, property or securities during the entire period
covered by a report, Respondent must so state under penalty of perjury in the report filed with the
Office of Probation for that reporting period. In this circumstance, Respondent need not file the
accountant's certificate described above.

7. The requirements of this condition are in addition to those set forth in rule 4-100, Rules of Professional Conduct.

(Do r	not w	rite_	abov	re ti	us	in	θ.

d. Client Trust Accounting School

Within one (1) year of the effective date of the discipline herein, Respondent must supply to the Office of Probation satisfactory proof of attendance at a session of the Ethics School Client Trust Accounting School, within the same period of time, and passage of the test given at the end of that session.

ATTACHMENT TO

STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DISPOSITION

IN THE MATTER OF:

SHANE ANDRES REED

CASE NUMBER:

17-C-02768-DFM

FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW.

Respondent admits that the following facts are true and that the facts and circumstances surrounding the offense for which he was convicted involved moral turpitude.

Case No. 17-C-02768 (Conviction Proceedings)

PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND IN CONVICTION PROCEEDING:

- 1. This is a proceeding pursuant to sections 6101 and 6102 of the Business and Professions Code and rule 9.10 of the California Rules of Court.
- 2. On January 8, 2015, the United States Attorney's Office for the District of Oregon filed an Information charging respondent with one count of violation of 26 of the United States Code section 7203 [failure to pay income tax], a misdemeanor.
- 3. On May 13, 2015, respondent pled guilty to one misdemeanor count of failure to pay income tax for tax years 2007, 2008, and 2009, in violation of 26 United States Code section 7203 [failure to pay income tax].
- 4. On May 13, 2015, Respondent was sentenced to five years' probation with conditions including 250 hours of volunteer work and an assessment of \$25. No restitution was ordered.
- 5. On August 17, 2017, the Review Department of the State Bar Court issued an order referring the matter to the Hearing Department for a hearing and decision recommending the discipline to be imposed in the event that the Hearing Department finds that the facts and circumstances surrounding the offense(s) for which respondent was convicted involved moral turpitude or other misconduct warranting discipline.

FACTS:

- 6. Respondent was practicing as a personal injury attorney when he filed federal income tax returns for 2006, 2007, and 2008.
- 7. The federal income tax returns for 2006, 2007, and 2008 collectively reflected that respondent earned a total of approximately \$880,000 in income for which he had a tax obligation of approximately \$129,000.
 - 8. Respondent failed to pay the taxes owed.

- 9. When the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") began communicating with respondent in writing, seeking to address his nonpayment of taxes as reflected on his tax returns, respondent was initially nonresponsive. Letters sent by the Collection Division were returned unopened. After some time, the IRS initiated formal collection proceedings.
- 10. Respondent was aware that the IRS would be seeking to levy identifiable bank accounts to secure payment of income taxes he had acknowledged he owed by the filing of income tax returns.
- 11. In 2009, respondent began using his client trust account ("CTA") to retain earned fees. Knowing that the IRS would be hesitant to levy an attorney's CTA, respondent sheltered his income by knowingly and intentionally leaving earned fees in the CTA. Periodically, and without regard to when fees were earned, respondent accessed earned fees by writing checks to himself from the CTA, which were later cashed and used for personal expenses.
- 12. Respondent continued to commingle earned fees with client funds in his CTA through 2010 and 2011.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW:

13. The facts and circumstances surrounding the above-described violation involved moral turpitude.

AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES.

Intentional Misconduct, Bad Faith or Dishonesty (Std. 1.5(d)): Respondent knowingly and intentionally used his client trust account to shelter earnings from potential collections by the IRS, thereby committing an act of moral turpitude.

Significant Harm to Client, Public or Administration of Justice (Std. 1.5(j)): Respondent's failure to pay income tax caused public harm. (See *In the Matter of Kreitenberg* (Review Dept. 2002) 4 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 469, 475 [public harm is an aggravating factor where an attorney fails to pay income tax].)

Prior Record of Discipline in a Foreign Jurisdiction: Respondent has one prior record of discipline in Oregon. In 2007, respondent was reprimanded for two violations of the Oregon Rules of Professional Conduct: ORPC 8.4(a)(3) [misrepresentation] and 7.5(c)(1) [misleading firm name]. Respondent violated ORPC 8.4(a)(3) [misrepresentation] by signing his client's name to a release of claims without informing the opposing party that he had signed the release on behalf of the client as the client's attorney in fact. Respondent violated 7.5(c)(1) [misleading firm name] by advertising that he was in a firm with "associates" when he was the only attorney. Respondent stipulated to facts, conclusions of law, and discipline consisting of a reprimand. While respondent was not disciplined in California for this misconduct, it is still considered a prior record of discipline for purposes of aggravation because there is a record of the underlying facts surrounding the misconduct. (See In the Matter of Jeffers (Review Dept. 1994) 3 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 211, 224 [records from any jurisdiction stated in Business and Professions Code 6049.1 are prior records of discipline and may be considered aggravating where there is a record of the factual underpinnings from the foreign jurisdiction's discipline].) This unreported record of discipline from Oregon has been referred to the Intake

Department of the Office of Chief Trial Counsel and may result in a further disciplinary matter. See Exhibit 1.

MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES.

Pretrial Stipulation: Respondent is entitled to mitigation for entering into a pretrial stipulation as to facts and conclusions of law, thereby obviating the need for trial and saving State Bar resources. (Silva v. State Bar (1989) 49 Cal.3d 1071, 1079 [where mitigation credit was given for entering into a stipulation as to facts and culpability].) Respondent has also acknowledged his misconduct.

AUTHORITIES SUPPORTING DISCIPLINE.

The Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional Misconduct "set forth a means for determining the appropriate disciplinary sanction in a particular case and to ensure consistency across cases dealing with similar misconduct and surrounding circumstances." (Rules Proc. of State Bar, tit. IV, Stds. for Atty. Sanctions for Prof. Misconduct, std. 1.1. All further references to standards are to this source.) The standards help fulfill the primary purposes of discipline, which include: protection of the public, the courts and the legal profession; maintenance of the highest professional standards; and preservation of public confidence in the legal profession. (See std. 1.1; In re Morse (1995) 11 Cal.4th 184, 205.)

Although not binding, the standards are entitled to "great weight" and should be followed "whenever possible" in determining level of discipline. (In re Silverton (2005) 36 Cal.4th 81, 92, quoting In re Brown (1995) 12 Cal.4th 205, 220 and In re Young (1989) 49 Cal.3d 257, 267, fn. 11.) Adherence to the standards in the great majority of cases serves the valuable purpose of eliminating disparity and assuring consistency, that is, the imposition of similar attorney discipline for instances of similar attorney misconduct. (In re Naney (1990) 51 Cal.3d 186, 190.) If a recommendation is at the high end or low end of a standard, an explanation must be given as to how the recommendation was reached. (Std. 1.1.) "Any disciplinary recommendation that deviates from the Standards must include clear reasons for the departure." (Std. 1.1; Blair v. State Bar (1989) 49 Cal.3d 762, 776, fn. 5.)

In determining whether to impose a sanction greater or less than that specified in a given standard, in addition to the factors set forth in the specific standard, consideration is to be given to the primary purposes of discipline; the balancing of all aggravating and mitigating circumstances; the type of misconduct at issue; whether the client, public, legal system or profession was harmed; and the member's willingness and ability to conform to ethical responsibilities in the future. (Stds. 1.7(b) and (c).)

Respondent's culpability in this proceeding is conclusively established by the record of his conviction (Bus. And Prof. Code section 6101(a); In re Crooks (1990) 51 Cal.3d 1090, 1097.) Respondent is presumed to have committed all elements of the crime of which he was convicted. (In re Duggan (1976) 17 Cal.3d 416, 423; In the Matter of Respondent O (Review Dept. 1993) 2 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 581, 588.)

The facts and circumstances surrounding Respondent's misdemeanor conviction for violation of United States Code section 7203 [failure to pay income tax] involved moral turpitude due to respondent's dishonest conduct discussed below. The sanction most applicable to respondent's misconduct is found under Standard 2.15(c), which provides: "Disbarment or actual suspension is the presumed sanction for final conviction of a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude."

In aggravation, respondent engaged in dishonest conduct and caused public harm. Respondent used his client trust account ("CTA") to retain earned fees knowing that the IRS would be hesitant to levy an attorney's CTA. This conduct occurred from 2009 to 2011. By intentionally sheltering his income from the IRS's collection efforts in the CTA, respondent engaged in acts of moral turpitude. His failure to pay income tax also caused harm to the public.

In light of the foregoing, discipline consisting of two years' actual suspension and until respondent provides proof satisfactory to the State Bar of his rehabilitation, fitness to practice, and present learning and ability pursuant to Standard 1.2(c)(1) is appropriate to protect the public, the courts, and the legal profession; to maintain high professional standards by attorneys; and to preserve public confidence in the legal profession.

This level of discipline is consistent with case law. In *In re Chernik* (1989) 49 Cal.3d 467, the attorney was convicted of conspiracy to defraud the United States by impeding the lawful function of the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"), in violation of 18 United States Code section 371. Specifically, the attorney illegally used backdated documents in a tax shelter scheme to allocate partnership losses to a partner prior to his entry into the partnership. The court found that the attorney's conviction involved moral turpitude. The court also noted that the attorney had 20 years of discipline-free practice. In that matter, the Supreme Court imposed discipline consisting of three years' stayed suspension, three years' probation subject to conditions, including the condition that the attorney be actually suspended for one year.

Like the attorney in *Chernik*, the facts and circumstances surrounding respondent's conviction involve acts of dishonesty constituting moral turpitude. However, unlike in *Chernik*, there is significant additional aggravation in the instant matter. While the court in *Chernik* noted that the attorney had 20 years of discipline-free practice, respondent has a prior record of discipline from 2007 in Oregon. Further, respondent intentionally shielded his income from IRS collection efforts by maintaining his income in his client trust account for several years. Respondent's use of his client trust account in the commission of the crime impugns the credibility of attorneys and the legitimacy of client trust accounts. In addition, respondent's failure to pay income tax caused public harm and placed entrusted funds at risk. Therefore, it is appropriate to impose a level of discipline substantially greater than the level of discipline imposed in *Chernik*.

In light of the foregoing, discipline consisting of two years' actual suspension and until respondent provides proof satisfactory to the State Bar of his rehabilitation, fitness to practice, and present learning and ability pursuant to Standard 1.2(c)(1) is appropriate to protect the public, the courts, and the legal profession; to maintain high professional standards by attorneys; and to preserve public confidence in the legal profession.

COSTS OF DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS.

Respondent acknowledges that the Office of Chief Trial Counsel has informed respondent that as of November 14, 2017, the discipline costs in this matter are \$2,629. Respondent further acknowledges that should this stipulation be rejected or should relief from the stipulation be granted, the costs in this matter may increase due to the cost of further proceedings.

EXCLUSION FROM MINIMUM CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION ("MCLE") CREDIT Respondent may <u>not</u> receive MCLE credit for completion of State Bar Ethics School, State Bar Client Trust Accounting School, and/or any other educational course(s) to be ordered as a condition of reproval or suspension. (Rules Proc. of State Bar, rule 3201.)

(Do not write above this line.)							
In the Matter of:	Case number(s):						
f	17-C-02768-DFM						
Shale Filmes Reed	17-0-02700-231141						

SIGNATURE OF THE PARTIES

By their signatures each of the recitati Conclusions of Lav	s below, the parties and their counsel, as ions and each of the terms and condition w and Disposition	applicable, signify their agreement with s of this Stipulation Re Fact,
11/27/11		Shane Andres Reed
Date /	Resilients Signature	Print Name
12/4/2017	Deputy Trial Chansel's Steinsture	Stacia L. Johns Print Name

(Do not write above this line.)						
in the Matter of: Shane Andres Reed	Case Number(s): 17-C-02768-DFM					

ACTUAL SUSPENSION ORDER

Finding the stipulation to be fair to the parties and that it adequately protects the public, IT IS ORDERED that the requested dismissal of counts/charges, if any, is GRANTED without prejudice, and:

- The stipulated facts and disposition are APPROVED and the DISCIPLINE RECOMMENDED to the Supreme Court.
- The stipulated facts and disposition are APPROVED AS MODIFIED as set forth below, and the DISCIPLINE IS RECOMMENDED to the Supreme Court.
- All Hearing dates are vacated.

The parties are bound by the stipulation as approved unless: 1) a motion to withdraw or modify the stipulation, filed within 15 days after service of this order, is granted; or 2) this court modifies or further modifies the approved stipulation. (See rule 5.58(E) & (F), Rules of Procedure.) The effective date of this disposition is the effective date of the Supreme Court order herein, normally 30 days after file date. (See rule 9.18(a), California Rules of Court.)

12/12/17

Date

DONALD F. MILES

Judge of the State Bar Court



True Copy Certificate

I certify that the attached documents consisting of 8 pages, are true and correct copies from the Oregon State Bar membership file or files of:

Shane A. Reed, Bar No. 961597.

Regulatory Services

By <u>Sergio Hernandez</u>
Public Records Coordinator
Oregon State Bar

Date August 25, 2017

1	IN THE SUPREME COURT					
2	OF THE STATE OF OREGON					
3	In re:					
4	Complaint as to the Conduct of Case No. 06-111					
5	SHANE A. REED, ORDER APPROVING STIPULATION FOR DISCIPLINE					
6	Accused.					
7						
8	This matter having been heard upon the Stipulation for Discipline entered into by Shan					
9	A. Reed (hereinafter, "Accused") and the Oregon State Bar, and good cause appearing, it					
10	hereby					
11	ORDERED that the stipulation between the parties is approved. The Accused is publicl					
12	reprimanded for violation of RPC 8.4(a)(3) and RPC 7.5(c)(1).					
13	DATED this 19 day of segtenber, 2007.					
14	V					
15	all a tunny					
16	Hop. Jill A. Tanner					
17	State Disciplinary Board Chairperson					
18						
19	R. Paul Frasier, Region 3					
20	Disciplinary Board Chairperson					
21						
22						
23						
24						

25

			ID) EGEIVI			
1	IN THE SUP	N				
2	OF THE STA	ШШ SEP 1 3 2007				
3	In re:	?	DISCIPLINARY BOARD (
4	Complaint as to the Conduct of) Case No. 06-111				
5	SHANE A. REED,					
6	Accused.) DISCIPLINE)				
7		,				
8	Shane A. Reed, attorney at law, (here	einafter, "Accused") and	the Oregon State Bar			
9	(hereinafter, "Bar"), hereby stipulate to the following	owing matters pursuant to	Oregon State Bar Rule			
10	of Procedure 3.6(c),					
11	1.					
. 12	The Bar was created and exists by virtue of the laws of the State of Oregon and is, and at					
13	all times mentioned herein was, authorized to carry out the provisions of ORS Chapter 9, relating					
14	to the discipline of attorneys.					
15	2.					
16	The Accused was admitted by the Oregon Supreme Court to the practice of law in					
17	Oregon on May 3, 1996, and has been a member of the Oregon State Bar continuously since that					
18	time, having his office and place of business in Jackson County, Oregon.					
19	3.					
20	The Accused enters into this Stipulation for Discipline freely, voluntarily, and with the					
21	advice of counsel. This Stipulation for Discipline is made under the restrictions of Bar Rule of					
22	Procedure 3.6(h).					
23	4	•				
24	On October 20, 2006, the State Profess	ional Responsibility Boar	d authorized a formal			
25	disciplinary proceeding against the Accused for alleged violations of RPC 8.4(a)(3), RPC					

1	7.1(a)(1), and RPC 7.5(c)(1). The parties intend that this stipulation set forth all relevant facts,
2	violations and the agreed-upon sanction as a final disposition of this proceeding.
3	FACTS AND VIOLATIONS
4	5.
5	On or about August 3, 2003, Adam Angel (hereinafter, "Angel") was involved in a motor
6	vehicle accident with an uninsured motorist. On or about August 13, 2003, Angel retained the
7	Accused to pursue claims for alleged personal and other injuries sustained and related to the
8	accident.
9	6.
10	On or about November 4, 2004, the Accused filed a civil complaint against Unitrin
11	Insurance Company, Adam Angel v Unitrin Insurance Company, Jackson County Circuit Court
12	Case No. 043932L1 (hereinafter, "Court Action"). In or about December 2005, the parties agreed to
13	settle the Court Action. Pursuant to the terms of settlement, the Accused's client was required to
14	sign a release of all claims.
15	7.
16	On or about December 26, 2005, pursuant to a power of attorney provided to the Accused
17	by his client, the Accused signed his client's name to a release of all claims in favor of Unitrin
18	Insurance Company (hereinafter, Unitrin") and other persons. The Accused delivered the signed
19	release to representatives of Unitrin. The signature purported to be that of his client. The Accused
20	did not disclose to Unitrin and its representatives, either on the release or otherwise, that the
21	Accused's client did not sign the release or that the Accused had signed the client's name as the
22	client's attorney in fact.
23	8.
24	The Accused admits that the aforesaid conduct constitutes a misrepresentation in
25	violation of RPC 8.4(a)(3) of the Rules of Professional Conduct.

1	9.
2	Prior to and between January 2005 and November 2006, the Accused conducted his law
3	practice with the names "Law Offices of Shane Reed & Associates," "Law Offices of Reed &
4	Associates," and similar names. The Accused used the names on his firm letterhead and other
5	documents, and advertised his firm name and services in writing using the names. At all material
6	times, the Accused was the only lawyer in the Accused's law firm.
7	10.
8	The Accused admits that the aforesaid conduct constitutes practicing law under a name
9	that was misleading as to the identity of the lawyer or lawyers practicing under such name in
10	violation of RPC 7.5(c)(1) of the Rules of Professional Conduct. Upon further factual inquiry,
11	the parties agree that the alleged violation of RPC 7.1(a)(1) as set forth in the Bar's Second
12	Cause of Complaint, upon the approval of this stipulation, is dismissed.
13	SANCTION
14	11.
15	The Accused and the Bar agree that in fashioning an appropriate sanction, the ABA
16	Standards for Imposing Lawyer Sanctions (hereinafter, "Standards") are considered. The
17	Standards require that the Accused's conduct be analyzed by the following factors: (1) the
18	ethical duty violated; (2) the attorney's mental state; (3) the actual or potential injury; and (4) the
19	existence of aggravating and mitigating circumstances. Standards, §3.0.
20	a. Duty violated. In violating RPC 8.4(a)(3) and RPC 7.5(c)(1), the Accused
21	violated a duty to the profession. Standards, §7.0.
22	b. Mental state. "Knowledge" is the conscious awareness of the nature or attendant
23	circumstances of the conduct but without the conscious objective to accomplish a
24	particular result. "Negligence" is the failure of a lawyer to heed a substantial risk
25	that circumstances exist or that a result will follow, which failure is a deviation

1		from the standard of care that a reasonable lawyer would exercise in the situation.
2		Standards, p. 7. The Accused knowingly signed the release with the client's name
3		and did not disclose to opposing counsel that the signature was not that of the
4		client. The Accused was negligent in failing to understand that he could not use
5		the phrase "& Associates" when no other lawyers were part of his law firm.
6	c.	Injury. The Standards define "injury" as harm to the client, the public, the legal
7		system or the profession that results from a lawyer's conduct. "Potential injury" is
8		harm to the client, the public, the legal system, or the profession that is reasonably
9		foreseeable at the time of the lawyer's conduct, and which, but for some
10		intervening factor or event, would probably have resulted from the lawyer's
11		misconduct. Standards, p. 7.
12		The Accused caused potential injury to opposing counsel and his client,
13		and the profession. Opposing counsel relied on the representation that the
14		signature appearing on the release was that of the Accused's client and was
15		denied any opportunity to determine whether the Accused's signing for the client
16		was sufficient or valid. There was also potential injury to the profession in that the
17		pubic could have been misled by the Accused's advertised law firm name.
18	d.	Aggravating factors. "Aggravating factors" are considerations that increase the
19		degree of discipline to be imposed. Standards, §9.22. There are multiple offenses.
20	•	Standards, §9.22(d). The Accused has substantial experience in the practice of
21		law. He was admitted to practice in 1996. Standards, §9.22(i).
22	e.	Mitigating factors. "Mitigating factors" are considerations that may decrease the
23		degree of discipline to be imposed. Standards, §9.32. The Accused has no prior
24		record of discipline. Standards, §9.32(a). There is an absence of dishonest

motives. The Accused held a power of attorney signed by the client upon which

1	he relied as the authority to sign his client's name. Standards, §9.32(b). The
2	Accused has acknowledged his misconduct and cooperated in the investigation
3	and the resolution of this case. Standards, §9.22(e). He regrets the misconduct
4	Standards, §9.32(m). The Accused has also changed his practices in signing
5	documents for clients and disclosing the authority by which he does so. He has
6	also changed the name of his firm to comply with the rules of professiona
7	conduct. Standards, §9.32(j).
8	12.
9	The Standards provide that suspension is generally appropriate when a lawyer knowingly
10	engages in conduct that is a violation of a duty owed as a professional and causes injury or
11	potential injury to a client, the public, or the legal system. Standard s, §7.2. Reprimand is
12	generally appropriate when a lawyer negligently engages in conduct that is a violation of a duty
13	owed as a professional and causes injury or potential injury to a client, the public, or the legal
14	system. Standards, §7.3.
15	13.
16	Oregon case law suggests that a reprimand is an appropriate sanction in this case. See,
17	e.g., In re Sims, 284 Or 37, 584 P2d 765 (1978) (reprimand for violation of former DR 1-
18	102(A)(3) [current RPC 8.4(a)(3)] when lawyer signed client's name to document and then
19	notarized the signature); In re Shilling, 9 DB Rptr 53 (1995) (reprimand for violation of former
20	DR 1-102(A)(3) [current RPC 8.4(a)(3)] when lawyer procured notarization of signature on
21	affidavit that was not signed in notary's presence). See also, In re Sussman and Tanner, 241 Or
22	246, 405 P2d 355 (1965) (public censure where lawyers identified themselves as partners when
23	they only shared office space).
24	

///

1	I, Shane A. Reed, being first duly sworn, say that I am the Accused in the above-entitled
2	proceeding and that I attest that the statements contained in the stipulation are true and correct as I verily believe.
3	
4	
5	Signal of Regist
6	Subscribed and sworn to before the this day of
7	
8	OFFICIAL SEAL
. 9	ALEJANDRINA VALDEZ Notary Public for Oregon Notary Public-Oregon COMMISSION NO. 378784 My commission expires: My commission expires:
10	M MY COMMISSION EXPIRES MAR. 22, 2008 II
11	
12	I, Jane E. Angus, being first duly sworn, say that I am Assistant Disciplinary Counsel for
13	the Oregon State Bar and that I attest that I have reviewed the foregoing Stipulation for Discipline and that the sanction was approved by the SPRB for submission to the Disciplinary
14	Board on the 17th day of August, 2007.
15	
16	Jane E. Angus
17	
18	Subscribed and swom to before me this 13th day of 5 eptember, 2007.
19	
20	Karen L. Duncan
21	Notary Public for Oregon KAREN L DUNCAN My commission expires: Nov. 24, 2010
22	GOLAMASSICH NO. 410165 INTERNATION EIPHER NOVEMBER 24, 2010
23	
24	

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[Rules Proc. of State Bar; Rule 5.27(B); Code Civ. Proc., § 1013a(4)]

I am a Case Administrator of the State Bar Court of California. I am over the age of eighteen and not a party to the within proceeding. Pursuant to standard court practice, in the City and County of Los Angeles, on December 12, 2017, I deposited a true copy of the following document(s):

STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DISPOSITION AND ORDER APPROVING

in a sealed envelope for collection and mailing on that date as follows:

by first-class mail, with postage thereon fully prepaid, through the United States Postal Service at Los Angeles, California, addressed as follows:

SHANE A. REED REED & ASSOCIATES P O BOX 452 JACKSONVILLE, OR 97530

by interoffice mail through a facility regularly maintained by the State Bar of California addressed as follows:

STACIA L. JOHNS, Enforcement, Los Angeles

I hereby certify that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed in Los Angeles, California, on December 12, 2017.

Louisa Ayrapetyan
Case Administrator
State Bar Court

FILED

AUG 17 2017 994

STATE BAR COURT CLERK'S OFFICE LOS ANGELES

STATE BAR COURT OF CALIFORNIA

REVIEW DEPARTMENT

IN BANK

In the Matter of)	Case No. 17-C-02768
SHANE ANDRES REED,)	ORDER
A Member of the State Bar, No. 158382.	·)	

Respondent Shane Andres Reed has been convicted of violating title 26 of the United States Code section 7203 (failure to pay income tax), a misdemeanor, which may or may not involve moral turpitude. As the judgment of conviction is final, this case is referred to the Hearing Department under the authority of California Rules of Court, rule 9.10(a), for a hearing and decision recommending the discipline to be imposed in the event that the Hearing Department finds that the facts and circumstances surrounding the misdemeanor violation of which respondent was convicted, involved moral turpitude or other misconduct warranting discipline.

PURCELL	
Presiding Judge	

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[Rules Proc. of State Bar; Rule 5.27(B); Code Civ. Proc., § 1013a(4)]

I am a Case Administrator of the State Bar Court of California. I am over the age of eighteen and not a party to the within proceeding. Pursuant to standard court practice, in the City and County of Los Angeles, on August 17, 2017, I deposited a true copy of the following document(s):

ORDER FILED August 17, 2017

in a sealed envelope for collection and mailing on that date as follows:

III a be	and on the policy conserved that making on that while the zero to
\boxtimes	by first-class mail, with postage thereon fully prepaid, through the United States Postal Service at Los Angeles, California, addressed as follows:
	SHANE A. REED REED & ASSOCIATES P O BOX 452 JACKSONVILLE, OR 97530
	by certified mail, No. , with return receipt requested, through the United States Postal Service at , California, addressed as follows:
	By personal service by leaving the documents in a sealed envelope or package clearly labeled to identify the attorney being served with a receptionist or a person having charge of the attorney's office, addressed as follows:
\boxtimes	by interoffice mail through a facility regularly maintained by the State Bar of California addressed as follows:
	Kevin B. Taylor, Enforcement, San Francisco
	by certify that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed in Los Angeles, California, on to 17, 2017. This Harry

Nikiah Hawkins Case Administrator State Bar Court



The document to which this certificate is affixed is a full, true and correct copy of the original on file and of record in the State Bar Court.

ATTEST March 26, 2019
State Bar Court, State Bar of California,
Los Angeles

By On High



True Copy Certificate

I certify that the attached documents consisting of 8 pages, are true and correct copies from the Oregon State Bar membership file or files of:

Shane A Reed, Bar No. 961597.

By <u>Liza Arellano Boudon</u> Public Records Coordinator Oregon State Bar

Date October 22, 2018

1	IN THE SUPREME COURT		
2	OF THE STATE OF OREGON		
3	In re:)	
4	Complaint as to the Conduct of) Case No. 06-111	
5	SHANE A. REED,	ORDER APPROVING STIPULATION	
6	Accused.) FOR DISCIPLINE)	
7) .	
8	This matter having been heard upon the	e Stipulation for Discipline entered into by Shane	
9	A. Reed (hereinafter, "Accused") and the Oregon State Bar, and good cause appearing, it i		
10	hereby		
11	ORDERED that the stipulation between the parties is approved. The Accused is publicly		
12	reprimanded for violation of RPC 8.4(a)(3) and RPC 7.5(c)(1).		
13	DATED this 19 day of <u>legtenber</u> 2007.		
14			
15	Hon. Jill A. Tanner State Disciplinary Board Chairperson		
16			
17			
18	X		
19	$\frac{v}{R}$.	Paul Frasier, Region 3	
20	Dis	sciplinary Board Chairperson	
21			
22			
23			
24			
25			

 $(+\frac{\epsilon_{ij}}{\epsilon_{ij}})^{-1} = (-1)^{\frac{1}{2}}(-1)$

		,	TO B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B
1	IN THE SUPREME COURT		DECEIVED
2	OF THE STATE OF OREGON		SEP 1 3 2007 U
3	In re:		DISCIPLINARY BOARD CLERK
4	Complaint as to the Conduct of	Case No. 06-111	
5	SHANE A. REED,	STIPULATION FOR	
6	Accused.	DISCIPLINE	•
7			
8	Shane A. Reed, attorney at law, (hereinafter, "Accused") and the Oregon State Bar		
9	(hereinafter, "Bar"), hereby stipulate to the follow	wing matters pursuant to	o Oregon State Bar Rule
10	of Procedure 3.6(c).		
11	1	,	
12	The Bar was created and exists by virtue of the laws of the State of Oregon and is, and at		
13	all times mentioned herein was, authorized to carry out the provisions of ORS Chapter 9, relating		
14	to the discipline of attorneys.		
15	2.		
16	The Accused was admitted by the Oregon Supreme Court to the practice of law in		
17	Oregon on May 3, 1996, and has been a member of the Oregon State Bar continuously since that		
18	time, having his office and place of business in Jackson County, Oregon.		
19	3.		
20	The Accused enters into this Stipulation for Discipline freely, voluntarily, and with the		
21	advice of counsel. This Stipulation for Discipline is made under the restrictions of Bar Rule of		trictions of Bar Rule of
22	Procedure 3.6(h).		
23	4.		
24	On October 20, 2006, the State Professi	onal Responsibility Boa	rd authorized a formal
25	disciplinary proceeding against the Accused for alleged violations of RPC 8.4(a)(3), RPC		f RPC 8.4(a)(3), RPC

Oregon State Bar Disciplinary Counsel's Office 5200 SW Meadows Road Lake Oswego, Oregon 97035 1-800-452-8260

PAGE 1 – STIPULATION FOR DISCIPLINE – SHANE A. REED

3.0

1	7.1(a)(1), and RPC 7.5(c)(1). The parties intend that this stipulation set forth all relevant facts
2	violations and the agreed-upon sanction as a final disposition of this proceeding.
3	FACTS AND VIOLATIONS
4	5.
5	On or about August 3, 2003, Adam Angel (hereinafter, "Angel") was involved in a motor
6	vehicle accident with an uninsured motorist. On or about August 13, 2003, Angel retained the
7	Accused to pursue claims for alleged personal and other injuries sustained and related to the
8	accident.
9	6.
10	On or about November 4, 2004, the Accused filed a civil complaint against Unitrin
11	Insurance Company, Adam Angel v Unitrin Insurance Company, Jackson County Circuit Court
12	Case No. 043932L1 (hereinafter, "Court Action"). In or about December 2005, the parties agreed to
13	settle the Court Action. Pursuant to the terms of settlement, the Accused's client was required to
14	sign a release of all claims.
15	7.
16	On or about December 26, 2005, pursuant to a power of attorney provided to the Accused
17	by his client, the Accused signed his client's name to a release of all claims in favor of Unitrin
18	Insurance Company (hereinafter, Unitrin") and other persons. The Accused delivered the signed
19	release to representatives of Unitrin. The signature purported to be that of his client. The Accused
20	did not disclose to Unitrin and its representatives, either on the release or otherwise, that the
21	Accused's client did not sign the release or that the Accused had signed the client's name as the
22	client's attorney in fact.
23	8.
24	The Accused admits that the aforesaid conduct constitutes a misrepresentation in
25	violation of RPC 8.4(a)(3) of the Rules of Professional Conduct

25

PAGE 2 – STIPULATION FOR DISCIPLINE – SHANE A. REED

1 9.

2	Prior to and between January 2005 and November 2006, the Accused conducted his law
3	practice with the names "Law Offices of Shane Reed & Associates," "Law Offices of Reed &
4	Associates," and similar names. The Accused used the names on his firm letterhead and other
5	documents, and advertised his firm name and services in writing using the names. At all material
6	times, the Accused was the only lawyer in the Accused's law firm.
7	10

10.

8

9

10

11

12

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

The Accused admits that the aforesaid conduct constitutes practicing law under a name that was misleading as to the identity of the lawyer or lawyers practicing under such name in violation of RPC 7.5(c)(1) of the Rules of Professional Conduct. Upon further factual inquiry, the parties agree that the alleged violation of RPC 7.1(a)(1) as set forth in the Bar's Second Cause of Complaint, upon the approval of this stipulation, is dismissed.

13 **SANCTION**

14 11.

The Accused and the Bar agree that in fashioning an appropriate sanction, the ABA Standards for Imposing Lawyer Sanctions (hereinafter, "Standards") are considered. The Standards require that the Accused's conduct be analyzed by the following factors: (1) the ethical duty violated; (2) the attorney's mental state; (3) the actual or potential injury; and (4) the existence of aggravating and mitigating circumstances. Standards, §3.0.

- Duty violated. In violating RPC 8.4(a)(3) and RPC 7.5(c)(1), the Accused a. violated a duty to the profession. Standards, §7.0.
- 22 b. Mental state. "Knowledge" is the conscious awareness of the nature or attendant 23 circumstances of the conduct but without the conscious objective to accomplish a 24 particular result. "Negligence" is the failure of a lawyer to heed a substantial risk 25 that circumstances exist or that a result will follow, which failure is a deviation

PAGE 3 - STIPULATION FOR DISCIPLINE - SHANE A. REED

1		from the standard of care that a reasonable lawyer would exercise in the situation.
2		Standards, p. 7. The Accused knowingly signed the release with the client's name
3		and did not disclose to opposing counsel that the signature was not that of the
4		client. The Accused was negligent in failing to understand that he could not use
5		the phrase "& Associates" when no other lawyers were part of his law firm.
6	c.	Injury. The Standards define "injury" as harm to the client, the public, the legal
7		system or the profession that results from a lawyer's conduct. "Potential injury" is
8		harm to the client, the public, the legal system, or the profession that is reasonably
9		foreseeable at the time of the lawyer's conduct, and which, but for some
10		intervening factor or event, would probably have resulted from the lawyer's
11	,	misconduct. Standards, p. 7.
12		The Accused caused potential injury to opposing counsel and his client,
13		and the profession. Opposing counsel relied on the representation that the
14		signature appearing on the release was that of the Accused's client and was
15		denied any opportunity to determine whether the Accused's signing for the client
16		was sufficient or valid. There was also potential injury to the profession in that the
17		pubic could have been misled by the Accused's advertised law firm name.
18	d.	Aggravating factors. "Aggravating factors" are considerations that increase the
19	,	degree of discipline to be imposed. Standards, §9.22. There are multiple offenses.
20		Standards, §9.22(d). The Accused has substantial experience in the practice of
21		law. He was admitted to practice in 1996. Standards, §9.22(i).
22	e.	Mitigating factors. "Mitigating factors" are considerations that may decrease the
23		degree of discipline to be imposed. Standards, §9.32. The Accused has no prior
24		record of discipline. Standards, §9.32(a). There is an absence of dishonest

25

motives. The Accused held a power of attorney signed by the client upon which

1	he relied as the authority to sign his client's name. Standards, §9.32(b). The	
2	Accused has acknowledged his misconduct and cooperated in the investigation	
3	and the resolution of this case. Standards, §9.22(e). He regrets the misconduct.	
4	Standards, §9.32(m). The Accused has also changed his practices in signing	
5	documents for clients and disclosing the authority by which he does so. He has	
6	also changed the name of his firm to comply with the rules of professional	
7	conduct. Standards, §9.32(j).	
8	12.	
9	The Standards provide that suspension is generally appropriate when a lawyer knowingly	
10	engages in conduct that is a violation of a duty owed as a professional and causes injury or	
11	potential injury to a client, the public, or the legal system. Standard s, §7.2. Reprimand is	
12	generally appropriate when a lawyer negligently engages in conduct that is a violation of a duty	
13	owed as a professional and causes injury or potential injury to a client, the public, or the legal	
14	system. Standards, §7.3.	
15	13.	
16	Oregon case law suggests that a reprimand is an appropriate sanction in this case. See,	
17	e.g., In re Sims, 284 Or 37, 584 P2d 765 (1978) (reprimand for violation of former DR 1-	
18	102(A)(3) [current RPC 8.4(a)(3)] when lawyer signed client's name to document and then	
19	notarized the signature); In re Shilling, 9 DB Rptr 53 (1995) (reprimand for violation of former	
20	DR 1-102(A)(3) [current RPC 8.4(a)(3)] when lawyer procured notarization of signature on	
21	affidavit that was not signed in notary's presence). See also, In re Sussman and Tanner, 241 Or	
22	246, 405 P2d 355 (1965) (public censure where lawyers identified themselves as partners when	
23	they only shared office space).	
24		

25

///

PAGE 5 - STIPULATION FOR DISCIPLINE - SHANE A. REED

Oregon State Bar Disciplinary Counsel's Office 5200 SW Meadows Road Lake Oswego, Oregon 97035 1-800-452-8260

1 14. 2 Consistent with the Standards and case law, the Bar and the Accused agree that the Accused shall be reprimanded for violations of RPC 8.4(a)(3) and RPC 7.5(c)(1) of the Rules of 3 4 Professional Conduct. 5 15. 6 In addition, the Accused shall pay \$740.20 to the Bar for the costs associated with the 7 Accused's deposition. The amount shall be immediately due and payable. The Bar shall be 8 entitled to entry of a judgment against the Accused for these costs, plus interest thereon at the 9 legal rate from the date of judgment until paid. 10 16. 11 This Stipulation for Discipline has been reviewed by the Disciplinary Counsel of the 12 Oregon State Bar, the sanction was approved by the State Professional Responsibility Board, and 13 shall be submitted to the Disciplinary Board for consideration pursuant to the terms of BR 3.6. 14 15 2007. 16 17 **EED, OSB No. 96159** 18 19 OREGON STATE BAR 20 21 Jane E. Angus, OSB No. 73014 22 Assistant Disciplinary Counsel 23 24

1	I, Shane A. Reed, being first duly sworn, say that I am the Accused in the above-entitled proceeding and that I attest that the statements contained in the statements are true and correct as
2	I verily believe.
3	
4	
5	Stand A/Reed
6	Subscribed and sworn to before me this day of, 2007.
7	\mathcal{I}
8	OFFICIAL SEAL CLE Nels.
. 9	ALEJANDRINA VALDEZ Notary Public for Oregon NOTARY PUBLIC-OREGON My commission expires: Notary Public for Oregon My commission expires:
10	MAY COMMISSION EXPIRES MAR. 22, 2008
11	
12	I, Jane E. Angus, being first duly sworn, say that I am Assistant Disciplinary Counsel for
13	the Oregon State Bar and that I attest that I have reviewed the foregoing Stipulation for
1.5	Discipline and that the sanction was approved by the SPRB for submission to the Disciplinary Board on the 17th day of August, 2007.
14	Dome on the 17th day of August, 2007.
15	
16	Jane E. Angus
17	
18	Subscribed and sworn to before me this 13th day of September, 2007.
19	·
20	OFFICIAL SEAL Karen L. Duncan
21	RAREN L DUNCAN Notary Public for Oregon MOTARY PUBLIC - OREGON My commission expires: Nov. 24 2010
22	COMMISSION NO. 410185 MY COMMISSION EXPIRES NOVEMBER 24, 2010
23	
24	

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[Rules Proc. of State Bar; Rule 5.27(B); Code Civ. Proc., § 1013a(4)]

I am a Court Specialist of the State Bar Court of California. I am over the age of eighteen and not a party to the within proceeding. Pursuant to standard court practice, in the City and County of Los Angeles, on April 19, 2019, I deposited a true copy of the following document(s):

STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DISPOSITION AND ORDER APPROVING; ORDER OF INVOLUNTARY INACTIVE ENROLLMENT

in a sealed envelope for collection and mailing on that date as follows:

by first-class mail, with postage thereon fully prepaid, through the United States Postal Service at Los Angeles, California, addressed as follows:

SHANE A. REED REED & ASSOCIATES P O BOX 452 JACKSONVILLE, OR 97530

by interoffice mail through a facility regularly maintained by the State Bar of California addressed as follows:

JOSHUA D. MENDELSOHN, Enforcement, Los Angeles

I hereby certify that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed in Los Angeles, California, on April 19, 2019.

Mazie Yip Court Specialist State Bar Court